
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, APRIL 11, 2022 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE) 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION: Minister Daphne Moseby, Mt. Shiloh Missionary Baptist Church.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. Pastor Mattie Jones Smith-Payton.

2. Pitt Community College: National Community College Month.

3. Volunteer Appreciation Week.

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1 Annexation.

2. Forbes Property Rezoning.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ March 14, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.

2. Audit Contract for fiscal year 2021 – 2022.

3. Budget Amendment 2021-2022-6.



 

 

X. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. MS4 Stormwater Management Plan. 

2. Ange Street Sidewalk Extension. 

3. Human Relations Board Appointments. 

4. Classification/Pay Study and Update of Town Personnel Policy. 

XI. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) and Emergency Response Plan (ERP). 

2. Rural Transformation Grant Funds. 

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 

1. Discuss dogs being held on chains. (Councilman Moore). 

2. Main and Mill Intersection Crosswalk. (Councilman Moore). 

3. Backyard Cleanup Day for Seniors. (Councilman Moore). 

4. Discussion on Post Office. (Councilman Moore). 

5. Discussion on Board of Adjustment. (Councilman Moore). 

6. Stormwater Workshop – set a date. 

7. Town Manager’s Performance Review – set a date. 

8. Discussion of Town’s 125th Quasquicentennial Anniversary Activities. 

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS. 

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS. 

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

1. Town Offices Closed: April 15, 2022 for the Good Friday Holiday. 
2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, April 18, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall 

Assembly Room. 
3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, April 19, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
4. Town Council and Manager Budget Progress Meeting: Monday, April 25, 2022 @6:00 pm – 

Town Hall Executive Conference Room. 
5. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center Training 

Room. 
6. NCLM CityVision April 26-28, 2022 – Wilmington Convention Center. 
7. Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, May 9, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
8. Town Council Budget Work Session #1: Tuesday, May 24, 2022 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall 

Assembly Room. 
9. Town Council Budget Work Session #2: Thursday, May 26, 2022 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall 

Assembly Room. 

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER. 

XVII. ADJOURN. 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 

PROCLAMATION 
PASTOR MATTIE ANN JONES SMITH-PAYTON 

MAY 5, 1930 - MARCH 22, 2022 

WHEREAS, Pastor Mattie Payton, daughter of the late Johnny and Ethel Carr-Jones was 
born May 5, 1930. She departed this life on March 22, 2022, 10:53 am at Vidant Medical 
Center. She was preceded in death by her late husband of 68 years, Mr. Johnnie Smith, and 
Elder John B. Payton of five years; 2 sons, Jessie Ray Smith, and Thomas Rhodes; and 4 
brothers Marvin “Buddy” Jones, Hugh Jones, Lymon Jones, Johnny “JJ” Jones, Jr.; and 

WHEREAS, At an early age she joined Saint Rest United Holy Church and served on the 
Ministerial, Usher, Transportation, and Kitchen Committee, for over 20 years; and 

WHEREAS, Dottie, as she was affectionally called, had a love for kids so much that she 
adopted three children and fostered over 100 children from the Pitt County Foster System. She 
attended W.H. Robinson High School and worked for the Pitt County School System for 20 
years until she planted and founded the New Deliverance Holy Church, Ayden, NC in 1984, 
where she pastored until she retired from labor to reward; and 

WHEREAS, She leaves to cherish her memories; 3 daughters: Brenda Smith of the home, 
Elder Edna Daniels (William), and Elder Shirley Moore (Jerry), all of Greenville, NC; 2 sons; 
Jerry Carroll of Washington, NC, Pastor Perry Smith of the home; 4 sisters: Mary Phillips 
(E.C.) of Greenville, NC, Fannie Baker, Mother Ada Carr both of Ayden, NC, Louise Harper of 
Winterville, NC, Mildred Duncan of California; 2 sister in-laws; Clydae Mae Smith, Mable 
Cousar, both of Winterville, NC; 16 grandchildren, 15 greatgrandchildren; 4 special God-
children; Kalre “Peaches” Gibbs of Greenville, NC, Elder Roderick Ward of Jacksonville, NC, 
Carolyn of Greenville, NC, Brenda Williams of Wilson, NC; a host of nieces, nephews other 
relatives and friends; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby honor 
her contributions and legacy. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed 
this 29th day of March 2022. 

 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

3



 

PROCLAMATION 
PITT COMMUNITY COLLEGE: APRIL 2022 NATIONAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE MONTH 

 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College is located within the Town limits of Winterville; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College educates and empowers people for success, with a culture of 
excellence and innovation, the college is a vital partner in the economic and workforce development of our 
community, and provides access to dynamic learning opportunities designed to foster personal enrichment, 
successful career preparation, and higher education transfer; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College is one of 58 institutions comprising the NC Community College System, 
which provides high-quality, affordable and accessible educational opportunities to nearly 700,000 students 
annually in an effort to develop a globally-competent workforce and improve lives; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College serves more than 20,000 curriculum and continuing education students 
annually and has proven itself to be a valuable source of higher education in Pitt County since it was established 
in March 1961; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College has demonstrated exceptional dedication to helping students, 
particularly low-income students and students of color achieve their goals for academic success, personal growth 
and economic opportunity by fulfilling a three-year commitment to the Achieving the Dream National Network; 
and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College offers customized training to prepare a skilled local workforce capable 
of sustaining existing business and industry while attracting new ones and operates a Small Business Center to 
assist local entrepreneurs with getting their businesses started and operating efficiently; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College is a leader in health care training in North Carolina, was recently 
deemed one of the nation’s "Most Promising Places to Work” in community colleges by Diverse: Issues in Higher 
Education magazine, ranks among the nation’s leaders in awarding associate degrees to African-Americans, 
and has been regularly designated a ‘Military-Friendly Institution’ in GI Jobs magazine; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College made a $228.1 million impact on the community during the 2019-2020 
fiscal year and continually advances the business and education community while generating a positive return 
on investment to its major stakeholder groups; students, taxpayers, and society; and, 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College is committed to adhering to the NC Community College System’s 
original mission of keeping the door open to all individuals seeking higher education and taking them from where 
they are educationally to where they want to go; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby proclaim April 2022 as 
“Pitt Community College Month”. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 11th day 
of April 2022. 

 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



 

PROCLAMATION 
Volunteer Appreciation Week - April 17-23, 2022 

 

WHEREAS, the celebration of Volunteer Appreciation Week, April 17-23, 2022, is a time to honor 
volunteers for the irreplaceable impact of their time and energy all year round; and 

WHEREAS, Volunteer Appreciation Week is an opportunity to celebrate the impact of volunteer 
service and the power of volunteers to tackle society’s greatest challenges, to build stronger communities 
and be a force that transforms the world; and 

WHEREAS, Each year, we shine a light on the people and causes that inspire us to serve, 
recognizing and thanking volunteers who lend their time, talent and voice to make a difference in their 
communities; and 

WHEREAS, Volunteer Appreciation Week was established in 1974 and has grown exponentially 
each year, with thousands of volunteer projects and special events scheduled throughout the week. Today, 
as people strive to lead lives that reflect their values, the expression of civic life has evolved; and 

WHEREAS, all Americans are called to observe this week by volunteering in service projects across 
our country and pledging to make service a part of their daily lives; and 

WHEREAS, experience teaches us that government alone cannot solve all of our nation’s social 
problems, so we have focused on partnerships with businesses, faith-based organizations, non-profit 
organizations and individuals to make a difference; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville believes that a tangible and sustained effort must be made to 
meet the diverse needs and challenges our residents may be facing because emergencies or economic 
crisis, and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville is committed to encouraging volunteerism among its employees, 
partners, businesses, organizations, and citizens; and 

WHEREAS, volunteers are vital to our future as a caring and productive Town. Dozens of volunteers 
through non-profit charities and faith based organizations working in our community utilize their time and 
talents daily to make a difference in the lives of children, adults and the elderly, and 

WHEREAS, on the celebration of Volunteer Appreciation Week, April 17-23, 2022, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby honor the 
volunteers. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 11th 
day of April 2022. 

 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

5



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition with Legal Description, Annexation Map, Certificate of Sufficiency, 
Adjacent Property Owner Notification, Public Hearing Notice, Draft Ordinance 22-O-041. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 3/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/4/2022 ☒ TM: 4/6/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/6/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Le & Lam Properties, property owner of Parcel 04819, is applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

 

Location: Church Street Ext at its intersection with Jeremy Lane. 

Size: 1.102 Acres 

Zoned: R-8 CD 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (2/14/2022). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (3/14/2022). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (4/11/2022). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

6



7



8



9



  

 
H & K PROPERTIES, LLC 
1118 FALLING RIVER WALK 
ROCKY MOUNT, NC 27804 

     

 
KEITH HAIGHT 
DIANA HAIGHT 
226 B JEREMY LANE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
BETTY S FIELDS 
3010 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

 
FRANKLIN R FIELDS 
ANDREA O FIELDS 
2947 CHURCH ST EXT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590      

 
CAROLINA EASTERN HOMES 
2012 SHEPARD STREET 
MOREHEAD CITY, NC 28557 

     

LINDA V MCLAWHORN 
2351 OLD CREEK RD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

  

  

  

     

  

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  
 10



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, April 11, 
2022 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public 
Hearing on the following annexation petition: 
 
The Town of Winterville has received an annexation petition from the property owner to annex 
a portion of parcel 04819 (Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1). 
 
Additional information is available by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2358. 
 
To maintain the safety of Town residents, Town Council, and Town Staff, the Winterville Town 
Council meeting will allow limited in-person attendance due to COVID-19 provisions and the 
meeting will be available electronically. The Agenda is available on the Town website at 
www.wintervillenc.com/agendas. The public is encouraged to watch the Town Council’s 
meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those that wish to address the 
Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 756-2221 ext. 
2344 or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com to register by one business day before 
the meeting at 5:00 pm. 
  
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Public Hearing – Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1 Annexation. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, March 30, 
2022 and Wednesday, April 6, 2022. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com 

11

mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com
http://www.wintervillenc.com/agendas
http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com
mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville 

Annexation Ordinance 

 

Ordinance No: 22-O-041 

Property Annexed: Portion of Parcel 04819 (Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1) 

Ordinance Adopted: April 11, 2022 

Effective Date: April 30, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mail to: 

 

Town of Winterville 

Attn: Planning Department 

2571 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

  

12



 

 

Ordinance No. 22-O-041 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1 – Annexation (Portion of Parcel 04819) 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the 

area described below; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has, by resolution, directed the Town Clerk to investigate 

the sufficiency of the petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public 

hearing on the question of annexation was held at the Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 pm on April 

11, 2022 after due notice was given by publication on March 30, 2022 and April 6, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 

160A-31; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 

North Carolina that: 

 

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described 

territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Winterville as of October 31, 2021: 

 

Legal Description for Annexation 

Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1 – Annexation 

(Portion of Parcel 04819) 

 

Beginning at an iron pipe on the curved southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, said iron 

pipe being located S 54° 56'58" E 67.86' from a Mag Nail located at the centerline 

intersection of Jeremy Lane and NCSR 1714 (Church Street). From the above  

described beginning, so located, running thence as follows:  

 

With the curved southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane an arc distance of 97.68', said curve 

to the right having a radius of 315.00' and a chord bearing S 70°14'44" E 97.29' to the point 

of tangency, thence S 61 °21 '44" E 131.06' to an existing iron pipe at the northwestern 

corner of Lot 228, Carroll Crossing as recorded in Map Book 62, Page 195 of the Pitt 

County Register of Deeds, thence leaving the southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane and 

with the western line of said Lot 228, Carroll Crossing, S 09°00'47" W 195.72' to an existing 

iron pipe, thence N 62°05'36" W 264.24' to an iron pipe on the eastern right-of-way of 

NCSR 1714 (Church Street), thence with the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714  

(Church Street), N 09°00'47" E 142.33' to the point of curvature, thence with a curve to the 

right an arc distance of 48.1 O', said curve having a radius of 30.00' and a chord bearing N 

54 °56'32" E 43.11' to the point of beginning containing 1.102 acres and being a portion of 

the property described in Deed Book 4049, Page 773 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. 

13



 

 

 

Section 2. Upon and after April 30, 2022, the above-described territory and its citizens 

and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in the Town 

of Winterville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town 

of Winterville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to NCGS 160A-58.10. 

 

Section 3. The Mayor of the Town of Winterville shall cause to be recorded in the Office 

of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County (MB _____ PG _____ ), and in the Office of the 

Secretary of State in Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, 

described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such map 

shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, as required by NCGS 163-288.1. 

 
 

Adopted this the 11th day of April 2022. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
  

14



 

 

North Carolina 

 

Pitt County 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted 

by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, at a meeting held on April 11, 

2022 at 7 o’clock pm at the Town Hall in the Town of Winterville. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and have caused the official 

corporate seal of the Town of Winterville to be affixed, this ______ day of April 2022. 

 

 

 

   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 

 

North Carolina  

 

Pitt County 

 

I, Kristin L. Godley, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

certification, for the purpose therein expressed. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this ______ day of April 2022. 

 

 

 

 

   

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires: June 23, 2024 

15



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Forbes Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 10614). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Public Hearing Notice, Staff Report, and Draft Ordinance 22-O-042. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 3/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/4/2022 ☒ TM: 4/6/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/6/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: William Alfred Forbes, IV. 

 

Location: Red Forbes Road south of its intersection with Forlines Road. 

 

Parcel Number:10614 

 

Site Data: 10.09 acres 

 

Current Zoning District: AR 

 

Proposed Zoning District: R-10 

 

❖ Proposed Zoning Districts: R-10. 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on January 31, 2022. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on January 27, 2022. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on February 21, 2022. 

❖ Public Hearing notice was published in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, March 30, 2022 and 

Wednesday, April 6, 2022. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

16



17



18



19



20



  

WILLIAM ALFRED FORBES, IV 
RICHARD FORBES GORMAN 
ETAL 
3560 LITTLESBURG ROAD 
BLUEFIELD, WV 24701      

THERADLINE HENY FORBES 
3560 LITTLESBURG ROAD 
BLUEFIELD, WV 24701 

     

WILLIAM ALFRED FORBES, III 
MARTHA S. FORBES 
PO BOX 498B 
BLUEFIELD, WV 24701 

  

  

ALEXIS C. EARLS 
2499 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
MICHAEL DON PIKE 
JUDITH WARREN PIKE 
2485 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

EULOGIO GALICIA SANCHEZ 
509 AMBLESIDE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

FOUR SIDED TRIANGLE, LLC 
PO BOX 735 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

STEPHON NEWKIRK 
2457 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JOHN PAUL HARTNETT, JR 
1588 TROLLEY ROAD 
HANOVER, PA 17331 

  

  

AARON EDWARD SMITH 
SPRIL DEMETRIS SMITH 
2445 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

HENRY M. LAMA 
LEDA E. LAMA 
2439 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

BRIAN B. UPCHURCH 
1600 GLENSIDE DRIVE 
GREENSBORO, NC 27405 

  

  

ANNIE L. KOONCE 
LEROY KOONCE 
2427 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JULINE COX 
2419 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

BRITTANY H. BRADFORD 
JAMES BRADFORD 
2413 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

DONNIE ELBERT WISLON 
LOIS TOLER WILSON 
PO BOX 1547 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

FRANK D. BENNETT 
VIRGINIA B. BENNET 
533 FORLINES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

SIDNEY R. SPAIN, JR. 

ALICE D. SPAIN 

525 FORLINES ROAD 

WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

 
DOROTHY GREEN MCROY 
2412 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
PHILLIP D WARD 
2432 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILLIAM S. HIGHSMITH 
NELDA A. HIGHSMITH 
2444 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

 
RONALD HARRELL WHITE 
2460 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
WILLIAM C. GLIDEWELL 
JUDY STOX GLIDEWELL 
PO BOX 1565 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

  
CLYNN WILLARD BARBER, JR 
EDNA PARAMORE BARBER 
2490 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

JASON HIGGINSON 
AMANDA HIGGINSON 
2105 WINDCHIME COURT 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JACQUELINE GAY BITNER 
ROBERT L. BITNER 
2513 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JAMES M. WARD 
SHANYELLE L. WARD 
2485 RED FORBES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

PITT COUNTY BOARD OF 
EDUCATION 
1717 WEST 5TH STREET 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

     

BLAKE WILLIS 
EMMA LYNN WILLS 
2527 RED FORBES RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

DEXTER RIGGS 
2505 WESTMINSTER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  
 21



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, April 11, 
2022 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to hold a 
public hearing on the following request: 
 
William Alfred Forbes, IV (property owner) has submitted a rezoning application to rezone 
Parcel 10614 (10.09 Acres) from Agricultural- Residential (AR) to R-10 Zoning District. The R-
10 Residential District is a quiet, medium density neighborhood consisting of single-family 
residences along with limited home occupations and private and public community uses. 
 
Additional information is available by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2358. 
 
To maintain the safety of Town residents, Town Council, and Town Staff, the Winterville Town 
Council meeting will allow limited in-person attendance due to COVID-19 provisions and the 
meeting will be available electronically. The Agenda is available on the Town website at 
www.wintervillenc.com/agendas. The public is encouraged to watch the Town Council’s 
meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those that wish to address the 
Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 756-2221 ext. 
2344 or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com to register by one business day before 
the meeting at 5:00 pm. 
  
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Public Hearing – Forbes Property Rezoning. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, March 30, 
2022 and Wednesday, April 6, 2022. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com 

22

mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com
http://www.wintervillenc.com/agendas
http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com
mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT William Alfred Forbes, IV 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural-Residential (AR) to R-10 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION Intersection of Red Forbes Road and Forlines Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 10614 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on December 6, 2021.  Notification was posted on site on 
December 1, 2021.  13 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 10.09 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Agricultural 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Single Family Residential 

E AR  Single Family Residential 

W R-10 Single Family Residential 

S AR Agriculture/Vacant 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
AR 

 
R-10 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Low-density residential and 
agricultural uses; where urban 
development is expected. 
 

(R-10 ) Medium Density; single-
family residential; limited home 
occupations.  

 

23



 

2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS (50’ Riparian Buffer along tributary off of Swift 
Creek) Stream feature located along northern 
property line.   

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Red Forbes Rd– NCDOT Road 
Ambleside Drive – TOW Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Red Forbes Road - 900 
Forlines Road – 4200 
Ambleside Drive – n/a 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

 

24



 

3 
Staff Report 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-10 zoning districts would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as an Urban Neighborhood 

character area. The requested R-10 zoning district is generally consistent with this 

character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   

• Low to medium density single family residential.  This land use type was identified as 

one that is appropriate and valued. This flexible land use type is appropriate for many 

parts of the planning area. 

 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 10.09-acre property is currently vacant.  The property North of the request is zoned AR 
and is single family residential.   West of the request is zoned R-10 and is single family 
residential. South of the request is zoned AR and is currently vacant.  East of the property is 
zoned AR and is single family residential.  
 
The R-10 District rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. The proposed R-10 zoning district fall within 
the density recommendations provided within the Suburban Residential character area.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning 

request on February 21, 2022. 

25



 

4 
Staff Report 

 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 10.09 acres from AR 

to R-10. 

26



Ordinance No: 22-O-042 

Page 1 of 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 155 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
 

WHEREAS, William Alfred Forbes, IV. has requested amendment of the Zoning 
Ordinance of the Town of Winterville by rezoning of the property described herein of Agricultural 
Residential (AR) to R-10. 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this zoning amendment was held, at the 
Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 p.m. on April 11, 2022, after due notice publication on March 30, 
2022 and April 6, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by first class mail to the 
owners of all parcels, as shown on the County Tax Records, adjoining the parcel under 
consideration, certification of which has been to the Winterville Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by posting a rezoning 
request notice on the subject property; 
 

WHEREAS, the Winterville Town Council finds that the proposed rezoning is in 
compliance with the Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 
North Carolina that: 
 

Section 1. The Town of Winterville Zoning Ordinance, Official Zoning Map, is hereby 
amended by rezoning the following described track from AR to R-10. 
 

Forbes Property, a 10.09-acre tract land located on Red Forbes Road, Tax Parcel 
10614 and being more particularly described in the legal description provided below. 

 

Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more 
particularly described as follows: 

 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM AR TO R-10 

WILLIAM ALRED FORBES, IV 

(FORBES PROPERTY) 

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 
 
BEGINNING at an iron pipe in the west right of way line of Red Forbes Road, the said iron pipe 
is located one tenth of a mile southwest of the said Red Forbes Road intersection with Forlines 
Road; thence North 55 degrees 49 minutes 50 seconds West 170.00 feet with the Phillip D. 
Ward line of record in Deed Book 77 at page 370 to an iron rod; thence continuing with the said 
Phillip D. Ward boundary line North 33 degrees 33 minutes 07 seconds East 227.97 feet to an 
iron rod; thence the following two calls with the Dorothy Green McRoy line of record in Deed 
Book X53 at page 209 to iron rods, North 67 degrees 29 minutes 26 seconds West 7.03 feet 

27



Ordinance No: 22-O-042 

Page 2 of 2 

and North 67 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West thence North 57 degrees 30 minutes 30 
seconds West 150.00 feet with the Sidney R Spain line of record in Deed Book 90 at Page 461 
to an iron rod; thence North 67 degrees 26 minutes 08 seconds West 149.98 feet with the Frank 
D. Bennett line of record in Deed Book 4061 at Page 865 to an iron pipe; thence North 67 
degrees 33 minutes 52 seconds West 150.02 feet with the Donnie E. Wilson line of record in 
Deed Book W45 at Page 516 to an iron pipe; thence the following four calls with the 
Manchester Subdivision lines of Record in Map Book 55 at Page 53 to points in a ditch, South 
23 degrees 00 minutes 37 seconds West 370.41 feet, South 36 degrees 16 minutes 06 seconds 
West 84.56 feet, South 46 degrees 52 minutes 12 seconds West 6.04 feet, and South 47 
degrees 44 minutes 36 seconds West 198.69 feet; thence crossing the east end of the 
Ambleside Drive right of way South 46 degrees 46 minutes 32 seconds West 60.00 feet to a 
point in the said ditch; thence continuing with the said ditch and the said Manchester 
Subdivision lines the following three calls South 46 degrees 46 minutes 32 seconds West 
120.00 feet, North 58 degrees 54 seconds 22 minutes Wes 97.71 feet and South 44 degrees 14 
minutes 23 seconds West 187.74 feet: thence South 61 degrees 28 minutes 18 seconds East 
491.13 feet to an iron pipe in the northwest comer of the Clyn Willard Barber lot of record in 
Deed Book 3753 at Page 823; thence North 34 degrees 13 minutes 28 seconds East 143.24 
feet with the said Barber line to an iron pipe; thence North 35 degrees 52 minutes 25 seconds 
East 193.97 feet with the Clyn Willard Barber, Jr lot line of record in Deed Book K45 at Page 
299 to an iron pipe; thence North 33 degrees 20 minutes 36 seconds East 299.29 feet with the 
William C. Glidewell, Jr lot of record in Deed Book Q47 at Page 684 and then the Ronald Harrell 
White lot of Record in Deed Book 73 at page 323 to an iron pipe; thence North 33 degrees 20 
minutes 36 seconds East 150.00 with the William S. Highsmith lot line of record in Deed Book 
232 at Page 488 to an iron rod; thence continuing with the said Highsmith lot line South 55 
degrees 59 minutes 44 seconds East 406.40 feet to an iron rod in the said Red Forbes Road 
right of way line; thence with the said Red Forbes right of way line North 36 degrees 00 minutes 
02 seconds East 69.85 feet to the BEGINNING: containing 10.09 acres according to a survey 
by Hood L. Richardson, PLS dated December 23, 2021 and titled "Survey for Manish Sethi". 
Reference is made to records with the Pitt County Register of Deeds. 

 
End of Legal Description 

 
Section 2. This action shall be shown on the Official Zoning Map. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 
 

Adopted this 11th day of April 2022. 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

28



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/4/2022 ☒ TM: 4/6/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/6/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

❖ March 14, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

29



 

Page 1 of 17 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, MARCH 14, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE) 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Mark C. Smith, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman (absent) 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Dr. Stephen Bonds gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hines led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: Town Clerk Harvey summarized the following Proclamations with comments from 
Town Manager Parker: 
 
  

30



 

Page 2 of 17 

Month and Week of the Young Child 2022: 

 

 

31



 

Page 3 of 17 

The Older Americans Act Nutrition Program Anniversary 2022: 

 

 

32



 

Page 4 of 17 

Town of Winterville 125th Anniversary (Quasquicentennial): 

 

 

33



 

Page 5 of 17 

Women’s History Month: 

 

 

34



 

Page 6 of 17 

PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Town’s History and 125th Quasquicentennial Anniversary: Jesse Riggs discussed and gave the 
following presentation. 
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

35



 

Page 7 of 17 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

36



 

Page 8 of 17 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

37



 

Page 9 of 17 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

38



 

Page 10 of 17 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

39



 

Page 11 of 17 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 
Mat Nelson-de Jesus made comments adding to the history including the fact that she is the great 
grandniece of Godfrey Mills. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Villa Grande, Phase 3 Rezoning Request: Planning Director Jones gave the request with the following 
presentation: 

40



 

Page 12 of 17 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

41



 

Page 13 of 17 

  
 

  
 

 
 
Planning Director Jones noted that no comments had been received. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open and asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
rezoning request. No one spoke. Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
rezoning request. No one spoke. Mayor Hines declared the public hearing closed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Villa Grande, Phase 3 Rezoning Request. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Hines read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
Heather Jackson with the Winterville Watermelon Festival: She noted they are moving forward with 
plans for this year’s Festival and preparing the NTA application. They are looking into other new 
funding sources and plan to run activities on Sunday from 9 am to 6 pm. Town Manager Parker asked 
that they outline the details of the Sunday activities in the funding application. Ms. Jackson said they 
are looking into a car show and market for Sunday. Councilwoman Roberson asked when is the 
Festival this year? Ms. Jackson responded August 25-28, 2022. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ February 14, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes; and 
➢ February 24, 2022 Vision Setting Meeting Minutes.  

42



 

Page 14 of 17 

2. Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1: Set Public Hearing for Annexation Request. 
3. Forbes Property Rezoning: Set Public Hearing Date. 
4. Release and Refund of Taxes. 
5. Budget Amendment 2021-2022-5. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve 
the consent agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Human Relations Board Appointments: Town Manager Parker noted that Section II of the approved 
HRB By-Laws outlines the membership and attendance components. The Mayor and each 
Councilmember appoints one person to the HRB. Terms of office are outlined as follows: 
 
The term of office for each WHRC member shall be as follows: 

• All members will serve a two-year staggered term;  

• No member shall serve more than three (3) consecutive terms;  

• Each member shall hold office until the qualification and appointment of his/her successor or until 
one (1) year has lapsed since the expiration of the term for which the member was appointed, 
which first occurs; and 

• In order to establish staggered terms, the original voting members of the WHRC shall be appointed 
as follows: 

• Two members for a one-year term. 

• Two members for a two-year term. 

• Two members for a three-year term. 

• Thereafter, each newly appointed voting member shall serve for a two-year term. 
 
Council may also appoint up to two (2) high school and (2) college/university (non-voting) student 
representatives. Finally, Council shall appoint one Council members to be the Council liaison to the 
HRB. Staff stands ready to assist as needed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked Council to put names forward. Mayor Hines nominated Shantel Hawkins; 
Councilwoman Roberson nominated Brandy Harrell; Council Rice nominated himself. Other members 
of Council were not prepared to make a nomination at this time. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Old Tar Road Widening Project Electric Engineering Contract: Electric Director Sutton noted that during 
the January 14, 2022 Town Council Meeting, Council gave approval for staff to enter contract 
negotiations with Utility Engineering for the Old Tar Road Widening Project (NC DOT Project U-2187). 
Negotiations promptly began and an estimate of $197,908 for the total project was a direct product of 
the process. 
 
Councilman Moye asked if the Town had any costs from the earlier work? Electric Director Sutton said 
we did, and we hope to glean some information for that effort. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Old 
Tar Road Widening Project Electric Engineering Contract estimate of $197,908 with Utility 
Engineering. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

43



 

Page 15 of 17 

NCLM Voting Delegate: Town Clerk Harvey noted that the nomination period for the 2022-2023 Board 
of Directors is now open and will run through March 31, 2022. Once again, NCLM will hold an electronic 
voting process for board elections. During CityVision, to be held April 26-28 in Wilmington, League 
members will attend the annual business meeting where the 2022-2023 electronic Board of Directors 
election results will be announced. 
 
Each member municipality shall designate one voting delegate who is eligible to cast a single vote for 
the 2022-2023 League Board of Directors in advance of the annual business meeting. The Council 
needs to designate a member as the Voting Delegate for the Town to ensure delivery of electronic 
ballot and voting instructions by April 15, 2022. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to designate 
Mayor Hines as the Town’s delegate, and if needed, Councilman Moye as the Alternate Delegate. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Human Resource Additions/Restructuring: Town Manager Parker noted that during the Vision Setting 
Meeting, a lengthy discussion was held regarding the state of positions and human resource Items. 
During that meeting she reported that she would be requesting some additional and/or restructured 
positions and discussed the addition of a Human Resource Director. She officially requested approval 
of the following: Creation of a Human Resources Director position – Grade 25 – Salary range – 
$66,924-$100,386. 
 
Merge the interim Part-Time Permit Tech position in Inspections/GIS and the Part-Time Finance 
Position into a full-time Customer Service Representative Position that will work both in Finance and 
Inspections/GIS. This is requesting the addition of a full-time position to Staff. This position is Grade 11 
with a Salary range - $33,802-$48,604. 
 
The Executive Staff/HR position will be restructured as an Executive Staff Assistant position. That 
position is a Grade 16 with a Salary range - $43,136-$64,711. Said position will be the same as there 
are several duties that can be added on the Executive Staff Assistant side that will compensate for the 
HR Assistant duties being removed. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
the Human Resource Additions and Restructuring as presented by Town Manager Parker. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Classification and Pay Study and Update of Town Personnel Policy: During the Vision Setting Meeting, 

Town Manager Parker reported that the Town needed an updated Classification/Pay Study to 

determine how competitive the Town’s position classifications and pay are comparatively speaking. She 

requested that Council approve the project concept and direct her to move forward working with the 

North Carolina League of Municipalities with finding and securing a quote. She also reported the Town 

needed an updated Personnel Policy to ensure that they up to date and in compliance with all 

applicable laws, regulations and policies related to Human Resources. She requested that Council 

approve the project concept and direct her to move forward working with the North Carolina League of 

Municipalities with finding and securing a quote. 

 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the 
Classification and Pay Study and Update of the Town Personnel Policy project concept and to 
move forward working with the North Carolina League of Municipalities with finding and 
securing a quote. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
 

44



 

Page 16 of 17 

OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Stormwater Workshop: Council has stated that holding a public workshop on stormwater was a priority 

item in recent months. We have yet to settle on a date that works for the majority of the Council. 

Therefore, Staff proposes the following choices: Tuesday, April 19, 2022 – 6:00 pm; Thursday, April 21, 
2022 – 6:00 pm; Tuesday, April 26, 2022 – 6:00 pm; or Thursday, April 28, 2022 – 6:00 pm. 
 
Mayor Hines said we must uphold our duties, set date, look into May for dates. Staff will look into May 
to find a suitable date. 
 
Discussion of Town’s Quasquicentennial Anniversary Activities: Council and Staff discussed possible 
activities and general dates. It was noted that the committee of citizens working on the anniversary 
would be meeting on Monday, March 28, 2022 at 6:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Councilwoman Roberson noted that the Library Board will need a representative when her existing term 
expires. Councilman Moye asked if the representative must be a Council member. It was noted that 
they did not have to be. 
 
Town Manager Parker said the Strategic Plan efforts with Planning Director Jones’ help was being 
investigated. 
 
Councilman Moye asked about the Newsletter and social media making mention of waste disposal 
special item, pickups, and related information. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 
 
1. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, March 15, 2022 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center Training 

Room. 
2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, March 21, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
4. Easter Eggstravaganza: Saturday, April 2, 2022; 11:00 am – 1:00 pm; Winterville Recreation Park. 
5. Town Offices Closed: April 15, 2022 for the Good Friday Holiday. 
6. Town Council and Manager Budget Progress Meeting: Monday, April 25, 2022 @6:00 pm – Town 

Hall Executive Conference Room. 
7. NCLM CityVision April 26-28, 2022 – Wilmington Convention Center. 
8. Town Council Budget Work Session: Tuesday, May 24, 2022 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
9. Town Council Budget Work Session: Thursday, May 26, 2022 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room 
 
Police Chief Willhite reported that they had spent time in the Blackstone and area. He also reported that 
they had identified 25 junk vehicles during the month with a goal of 1 per day. Also, there were 30 
citations or warnings issued on East Main Street. Councilman Moye asked what happens if junk cars 
cannot pay for fees or disposal with owner costs. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: Noted that the Sweepstakes case had been closed and there is a closed session 
tonight. 

45



 

Page 17 of 17 

 
Councilwoman Roberson: None. 
 
Councilman Rice: None. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith: None. 
 
Councilman Moye: Noted he received a call from Blackstone area, and they are doing a petition for 
speed bumps. 
 
Manager Parker: None. 
 
Mayor Hines: Discussed the importance of Women’s history. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to go into Closed 
Session (NCGS § 143-318.11. (a) (5) (ii) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or 
negotiating agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in 
negotiating (ii) the amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment 
contract or proposed employment contract.). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to return to Open 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve an 
increase of compensation for Attorney Lassiter from $200 per hour to $250 per hour. Motion 
carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn 
the meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:28 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 11th day of April 2022. 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

46



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Audit Contract for Fiscal Year 2021 – 2022. 

Action Requested: Approve the audit contract with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

Attachment: Contract and Engagement letter. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 3/31/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/4/2022 ☒ TM: 4/6/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/6/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Each year the Town Council must approve the contract with the audit firm that it uses for its independent 

review of the Town’s Finances. We are recommending that we use CRI out of Goldsboro. This will be the 

fifth full year for the Goldsboro team. Mr. Jordan and his staff are highly recognized in the state and are used 

to review other audits in the state. 

Budgetary Impact: This is accounted for in the operating budget for the Finance Department. The value of 
the contract is $$42,500. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract. 

 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2020-2021-6 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 2020-20201-6. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 4/5/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/5/2022 ☒ TM: 4/6/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/6/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the sixth budget amendment for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year. 

The first item addresses the cost of the Pay Study and Classification contract with the MAPS Group. They 

are the preferred partner selected by the NC League of Municipalities. 

The second item is to appropriate funds to cover residential and commercial development on our Electric 

System. The Electric Director is recommending that we will need $735,300 in order to cover the cost. 

The third item addresses several concerns related to the Sewer Fund. We have had some major failures in 

the system and with equipment. We have also discovered that we did not have backup pumps for many of 

the Town’s sewer lift stations. The total cost is split over four line items; Maintenance and Repair of 

Equipment, Vehicles, Contracted Services, and supplies and materials in the amount of $165,000. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $917,800. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

57



 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease

Fund Balance 10 3831 General Fund 17,500       

Fund Balance 60 3831 Electric Fund 735,300     

Fund Balance 62 3831 Sewer Fund 165,000     

Total 917,800$   -$           

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease

Contracted Service 10412003 4233 Human Resources General 17,500       

Capital Outlay 60801000 7150 Electric Fund 735,300     

Maintenance and Repair of Equipment 62732020 4225 Sewer Fund 15,000       

Maintenance and Repair of Vehicles 62732020 4226 Sewer Fund 20,000       

Supplies and Materials 62732020 4230 Sewer Fund 80,000       

Contracted Service 62732020 4233 Sewer Fund 50,000       

Total 917,800$   -$           

Adopted the 11th day of April 2022.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the annual 

budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022:

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 21-22-6

58



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: MS4 Stormwater Management Plan – Task Order #32. 

Action Requested: Approval of Amendment to Task Order #32 

Attachment: Winterville Amendment to TO #32. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/7/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/7/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

MS4 Stormwater Management Plan. 

An update from a meeting concerning the on-going efforts between Wooten and Winterville. Below are the 
updates and documents related to Task Order No. 32 (MS4 Stormwater Management Plan). 

Project Summary: 

In an effort to return to compliance with the Town’s MS4 Stormwater permit, Wooten was secured to assist in 
drafting a Stormwater Management Plan.  While work is underway on the report, the State of North Carolina 
is requiring all entities in the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico river basins to review and update their stormwater 
ordinance. 

Current Need: 

An amendment has been provided to allow Winterville (via email on 2/11/2022) to Amend our TO #32 
contract to include the time and resources to update the ordinance as part of the larger MS4 Report project. 
We need this executed Amendment to proceed with the additional work. 

Budgetary Impact: Amendment - $6,000. Original Task Order - $28,500 Total - $34,500. 

Recommendation: Approval Amendment to Task Order. 

 

59



60



61



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Ange Street Sidewalk Extension 

Action Requested: Approval of Task Order No. 35. 

Attachment: Winterville TO #35 - Ange Street Sidewalk with Wooten Company and Cost Estimate. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/7/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/7/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Ange Street Sidewalk Extension. 

Project Summary: 

The Town of Winterville has expressed an interest in installing new sidewalk along Ange Street between 
Sylvania and Blount streets (see schematic attached). This work will tie into existing sidewalks surrounding 
the block and will require the fill of a NCDOT ditch along with new catch basin(s) and a culvert pipe under 
Ange Street. ADA compliant ramps will be installed for Blount Street, Barrel Drive, and Sylvania Street. The 
push for this is to attempt to time the construction during the summer school schedule to avoid interruptions 
to school traffic. Per Town request, an initial estimate was provide via email (2/10/2022). Additional request 
was made to formalize this into a Task Order (see attached). 

Current Need: 

A Task Order has been provided to Winterville for the extent of this work. Wooten Company needs an 

executed contract to proceed with the work. 

Budgetary Impact: $34,250 total project. 

Recommendation: Approve Task Order No. 35. 

 

62



63



64



65



2/10/2022

Item No. Description Units Unit Price Quantities Total Extended Price

1 New Concrete Sidewalk SF $15.00 2,500 37,500.00$                                  

2 Handicapped Ramps w/ ADA Warning Pad EA $2,750.00 4 11,000.00$                                  

3 Concrete and Geotechnical Testing Allowance LS $1,500.00 1 1,500.00$                                    

4 Erosion Control LS $2,500.00 1 2,500.00$                                    

5 Clean-up and Seeding LS $2,500.00 1 2,500.00$                                    

6 Strip Topsoil SY $5.00 1,120 5,600.00$                                    

7 Backfill Existing Ditch CY $20.00 420 8,400.00$                                    

8 Undercut CY $30.00 15 450.00$                                       

9 Select Fill CY $40.00 15 600.00$                                       

10 Relocate Signs EA $75.00 2 150.00$                                       

11 New 24" Standard Curb and Gutter LF $55.00 400 22,000.00$                                  

12 NCDOT Pavement Patching and Stiping SY $150.00 240 36,000.00$                                  

13 Catch Basin EA $3,500.00 1 3,500.00$                                    

14 New 18-inch Culvert Pipe LF $125.00 50 6,250.00$                                    

 $                               137,950.00 

 $                                 27,590.00 

 $                                  18,500.00 

 $                                    7,000.00 

 $                                    8,750.00 

 $                               199,790.00 

Construction Total

Contingency (20%)

Ange Street Sidewalk Extension

Erosion Control Work Items

Miscellaneous Work Items

Note: Cost are estimated for projects bid in 2022.

Total Base Bid Project Cost

Construction Observation (1 Months Part Time)

Engineering Design & Bidding

Construction Admin. (1.5 Months)

Grading Work Items

ESTIMATE

OF

PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

for the

Town of Winterville

Page 1  of 1

66



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Human Relations Board Appointments. 

Action Requested: Appointment of Remaining Members to the Human Relations Board. 

Attachment: None 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 3/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/4/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
 

Section II of the Approve HRB By-Laws outlines the membership and attendance components.  

The Mayor and each Councilmember appoints one person to the HRB. Terms of office are outlined as 

follows: 

The term of office for each WHRC member shall be as follows: 

• All members will serve a two-year staggered term;  

• No member shall serve more than three (3) consecutive terms;  

• Each member shall hold office until the qualification and appointment of his/her successor or until one 

(1) year has lapsed since the expiration of the term for which the member was appointed, which first 

occurs; and 

• In order to establish staggered terms, the original voting members of the WHRC shall be appointed 

as follows: 

• Two members for a one-year term. 

• Two members for a two-year term. 

• Two members for a three-year term. 

• Thereafter, each newly appointed voting member shall serve for a two-year term. 

 

Council may also appoint up to two (2) high school and (2) college/university (non-voting) student 

representatives. Finally, Council shall appoint one Council members to be the Council liaison to the HRB. 

 

At the last meeting Mayor Hines nominated Shantel Hawkins, Councilwoman Roberson nominated Brandy 

Harrell, and Councilman Rice nominated himself. 

 

Staff stands ready to assist as needed. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Complete Nominations so Council can Approve members. 

 

67



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Classification/Pay Study. 

Action Requested: Approval to Move Forward with Working with the NCLM. 

Attachment: Copy of Contract with NCLM. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 3/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/4/2022 ☒ TM: 3/9/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/9/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

During the Vision Setting Meeting, the Council was informed of the need for an updated Classification/Pay 

Study to determine how competitive the Town’s position classifications and pay are comparatively speaking. 

I contacted the NCLM to get them to send me a quote and subsequent contract with the MAPS Group (one 

of the League’s Preferred Partners). Staff hereby requests approval of the Contract with the NCLM for the 

above-stated services. 

Budgetary Impact: $15,684 plus certain itemized expenses at $25 an hour, estimated to be approximately 
$1,500. 

Recommendation: Approve Contract 

 

68



 
March 15, 2022 
 
 
Ms. Terri Parker 
Town Manager 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC  28590 
 
Dear Terri: 
 
We are pleased to be able to offer the enclosed Memorandum of Agreement to the 
Town of Winterville to perform the specified personnel services as described herein. 
 
This contract will be performed through an agreement between the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities and the MAPS Group.  This private consulting firm consists 
of former and current practicing human resource and management professionals in the 
public sector who specialize in human resource and general management.  They are, or 
have been, employed in management positions at the state and municipal level of 
government and undertake consulting assignments for the North Carolina League of 
Municipalities. 
 
I will have overall responsibility for this project to determine that all contractual 
obligations of this study are successfully met. 
 
If you have any questions or need clarification on any item contained within our 
Memorandum of Agreement, please contact me at the League Office. 
 

 Sincerely, 
 
Heather James/kb 
 
Heather James 
Human Resources Consultant 
 
HJ/kb 
Enclosures 
 
cc: The MAPS Group 

69



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

 

PERSONNEL SERVICE 

 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
  

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2022 by 

and between the North Carolina League of Municipalities, an unincorporated association, 

hereinafter called "League", and the Town of Winterville, an incorporated municipality 

hereinafter called “Town.” 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

 In consideration of the amounts of money hereinafter agreed to be paid, and in 

consideration of the other conditions hereinafter agreed to by the Town of Winterville, the 

League offers to perform the following services: 

 

Scope of Services 

 

 The League agrees to provide through its subcontractor The MAPS Group the services 

described and set forth in Attachment “A”, Scope of Services, which is incorporated into and 

made a part of the Memorandum of Agreement by reference. 

 

Time for Performance 

 

 The time for performance will be approximately three (3) months.  The contract can 

begin in July 2022. 

 

Cost 

 

 The fee for the proposed work is fifteen thousand six hundred eighty-four dollars 

($15,684.00).  In addition, the Town will be billed for actual itemized expenses for mileage, meals, 

lodging, printing and supplies and actual travel time at $25.00 per hour (estimated at no more 

than $1500.00).   

 

 In consideration of the services performed by the League, the Town agrees to abide by 

and perform the following: 

 

 The MAPS Group will bill the Town for one payment of $3921 at the beginning of the 

study; another payment of the same amount upon completion of the interviews; another 

payment of the same amount upon completion of the first draft of the study; and a final payment 

of the same amount plus actual itemized expenses and travel time when the study is 

completed. The Town agrees to remit payment to The MAPS Group upon receipt of each of 

the statements referred to above. 

70

https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nclm.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7CKBAREFOOT%40NCLM.ORG%7C76a050989ed24ab677ba08d6cf0e1748%7C2d1671225ed446918041b4ea69a4c106%7C0%7C0%7C636924056780912201&sdata=I%2BdJM4q5mHEI2c%2FIArroDZ6V2Q8fspwuvQMoXDJfQLs%3D&reserved=0


Execution 

 

 If this Memorandum of Agreement is not executed and returned to the League Office 
within thirty (30) days from the submission date, the time frame for performance may have to 
be renegotiated. 
 

 If the terms of this contract are acceptable, please sign two (2) copies and return one 

to the League office. 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY:     ACCEPTED BY: 

 

NORTH CAROLINA LEAGUE OF   TOWN OF WINTERVILLE  

MUNICIPALITIES 

 

 

 

Heather James/kb      _______________________   
Heather James                   Name 

Human Resources Consultant 

  

      

  

3/15/2022      __________________________  

Submission Date        Title 

 

 

       __________________________ 

          Date 

 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the 

manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

_______________________________ 

(Signature of Finance Officer) 

71

https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nclm.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7CKBAREFOOT%40NCLM.ORG%7C76a050989ed24ab677ba08d6cf0e1748%7C2d1671225ed446918041b4ea69a4c106%7C0%7C0%7C636924056780912201&sdata=I%2BdJM4q5mHEI2c%2FIArroDZ6V2Q8fspwuvQMoXDJfQLs%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

 

 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

PAY AND CLASSIFICATION STUDY 

72



SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

Objectives of Study 

 

The primary purpose of this study is to conduct a comprehensive pay and classification study for 

the Town of Winterville to include the following work study objectives: 

 

- To study and evaluate all positions covered by the NCLGERS within the Town for 

the purpose of determining the proper position classification and salary for each 

employee. 

 

- To conduct a comprehensive salary survey of appropriate public and private sector 

organizations to determine that the Town's salaries, benefits and wages are 

competitive within the applicable job market. 

 

- To prepare or update class specifications for each position class based upon 

current job duties and requirements, outlining appropriate ADA information. 

 

- To prepare a pay plan for the Town as required to maintain a competitive system 

of salaries and wages. 

 

- To identify those classes of positions that are "exempt" and "non-exempt" in 

compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (F.L.S.A.) of 1983 as amended in 

1985.  

 

- To review and make recommendations concerning the effectiveness of the Town’s 

overall compensation system including compression issues. 

 

   
Study Work Components 

 

A. Preparation of the Classification and Pay Plan 
 
1. Conduct a comprehensive review of the Town’s Personnel system for the purposes of staff 

orientation and to provide data and information to be used in the preparation of the 
classification and compensation data and related Personnel components. 

 
2. Conduct a meeting with Town Manager and department heads to discuss the various work 

components of the study and to explain the study methodology and approach. At this 
meeting we will also discuss the appropriate labor market for surveying salary data and 
the project schedule.  

 
3. Conduct orientation sessions with employees to cover the purposes and process of the 

study.  These meetings help establish realistic expectations with employees and reduce 
mis-information. The meetings will cover: 

 
* purposes of the study; 
* steps in conducting the study; 
* study methodology; 
* what the study will and will not cover; and 

73



* answer any questions 
 
4. Survey existing employee positions.  This task will involve a review of the completed 

questionnaires, interviews with representative employees in each class, and conferences 
with each department head to review and verify information presented on the 
questionnaires and in the desk audits.  The purpose of this task is to determine that The 
MAPS group obtains comprehensive, factual, and accurate data and information.  This 
task also resolves any conflicting information or data.   

 
5. Following the review and field audit of existing employee positions, class specifications 

(often called job descriptions) will be prepared.  These class specifications will be written 
to comply with OSHA and ADA regulations.  The MAPS Group will use the following factors 
to classify jobs: 

 
* Difficulty, complexity, and variety of work 
* Education and experience requirements of the job 
* Nature and extent of public contact 
* Physical effort and hazards; and 
* Supervision given and received. 

 
 
B.  Development of the Pay Plan 
 
1. A survey of salary plans will be performed utilizing public sector jurisdictions and other 

organizations for the purpose of recommending wage and salary schedules that are 
competitive and sufficient to attract and retain qualified employees. The identification of 
competitive organizations will be made by the Town in consultation with The MAPS Group.  
The salary survey will request hiring and maximum salaries for each position surveyed. 

 
2. A comprehensive analysis of the salary survey will be prepared. 
 
3. Following analyses of all inputs considered previously in Study Components A and B, all 
 classes  
 of positions will be allocated to the recommended salary schedule. 
 
 
C. Preparation of the Employee Allocation List 
 
1. Following completion of the classification plan and compensation schedule, an allocation 

list will be prepared showing employees by name, present classification, proposed 
classification, present salary grade, proposed salary grade, recommended salary, and 
proposed increase amount (if applicable).  

 
2. Costs for implementation options of the plan will be provided.  Up to three optional 

implementation strategies will be provided with graphs illustrating impact of each option 
on salary compression as well as costs.  Options will be designed specifically to address 
compression if needed and desired. 

 
If more than three options are needed, there will an additional charge of $250 per 
additional option. 

 

74



FLSA Status 
 
As part of this study, the MAPS Group will identify and recommend positions that the Town may 
consider Exempt from the Wage and Hour Provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. 
 
Personnel Policy 
 
The MAPS Group will review and make recommendations for updating the Town’s personnel 
policy to be consistent with modern and effective human resource management and current laws 
and regulations.  The personnel policy is reviewed for policy versus procedural language and is 
recommended to meet a balance of providing guidance without including unnecessarily restrictive 
or detailed procedures.  If needed, a new policy will be provided. 
 
Communication with the Town 
 
During the study, MAPS principals will be available to Town management to clarify any steps, 
current stage of the study, or other issues related to the study by phone and email.  In addition, 
while MAPS principals are on site for orientation and/or interviews, personal consultations are 
available as necessary to the study.  A draft of the study will be sent to management for review 
and MAPS will make one visit to discuss management reactions to the study prior to finalizing it.  
After the draft review, the MAPS Group will make a presentation to the Town Council and then 
return once more to respond for discussion and questions with the Council.  Any additional trips 
will require additional fees. 
 
Involvement of Town Staff 
 
Town staff members will be required to complete position description questionnaires for each 
position, prepare organization charts, participate in interviews if selected (all department directors 
will be interviewed), provide current employee data including copies of current salary plan and 
employee information by department with name, current classification, current grade, date of hire, 
date of entry to current position, and current annual salary. These last components are needed 
for calculating the costs of implementation options. 
 
Results of the Study 
 
The study will result in the publication and delivery to the Town of fifteen (15) copies of the report 
to include the classification plan, class specifications, compensation plan, and implementation 
costs.  The MAPS representative will formally present the study to the Town Council/Board and 
be available to respond to questions. 
 
Plan Maintenance 
 
Once the study is complete and implemented, the MAPS Group will provide assistance to Town 
staff on maintenance of the plan including the classification of new or revised positions, market 
revisions to the pay plan and other assistance as needed.  The MAPS Group will provide 
telephone consultation and will classify new or revised positions as needed for up to five years 
following the study for $200 per position.  Additional work may be performed on a maintenance 
contract.   
 
In addition, the MAPS Group will provide the Town with a linked spreadsheet that will allow for 
market adjustments (cost of living increases) to automatically update the salary schedule and 
class listings and provide the Town with a digital copy of all class specifications and policies. 

75



 
Project Staff 
 
The project staff will be assigned in consultation with the Town. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

76



VITA 
REBECCA L. VEAZEY 

 
BORN: Durham County, North Carolina 
 
EDUCATION: 

Southern High School, Durham, N. C. 
B. A. Speech and Education - University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 
M. P. A. - University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill  
Municipal Administration Course, Institute of Government 
Group Facilitation and Consultation Course, Institute of Government 

 
CAREER PROGRESSION: 

President, The MAPS Group (Management and Personnel Services) - a   
   consulting group providing personnel, organization development, training, 
   and management services for local governments, 1995 to present 

Principal, the MAPS Group 
Human Resources Director, Durham County 
Director of Personnel, Town of Cary (Cary’s first Personnel Director) 
Personnel Officer, Town of Chapel Hill 
Training Specialist, Town of Greensboro 

 
PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES: 

International Personnel Management Association (IPMA).  Lifetime Achievement 
Award 2010.  Active in N. C. Chapter including serving as Treasurer, on 
program committee for state chapter for three years, on Regional program 
committee one year, and chairperson of Finance Strategic Planning 
Committee. 

Organization of Municipal Personnel Officers (OMPO), Life Member Award,  
   Board Member, President, and Immediate Past President. 

North Carolina League of Municipalities, Board of Directors, 1985-1987. 
American Society for Training and Development, Triangle Chapter member. 
Facilitation and Organization Development Group, (FODG) founding member 
Systems Thinking in Government Group 

 
COMMUNITY AND OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

U. N. C. General Alumni Association, Board of Directors 
U. N. C. Master of Public Administration Alumni Association, Past President 
Local Government Employees Federal Credit Union, founding member, Loan  

   Committee Chairperson, and member of the Board of Directors 
United Way Campaign Chair, Durham County and Town of Cary 

 
EXPERIENCE: 
 

Conducting classification and pay studies for municipalities, counties, councils of 
governments, housing authorities, and other non-profit organizations. 
 
Facilitating/leading the development and implementation of performance management, 
compensation philosophy and performance pay programs as both an internal and external 
consultant.   

 

77



Rebecca L. Veazey 
Vita Synopsis 
Page 2 
 
Experience (continued) 
 

Serving as facilitator at strategic planning and team building retreats for staffs, boards, 
and elected officials.  Also, providing on-going developmental facilitation to assist an 
organization with team building; organization development; planned change; development 
of mission, vision, and values; development of compensation philosophies; leadership 
development; or other issues. 

 
Developing and conducting management and supervisory training on a variety of topics 
including leadership, coaching and feedback, conducting performance reviews, principles 
of supervision, communications skills, motivation techniques, legal issues in supervision, 
hiring the right person, effective grievance and disciplinary actions administration, conflict 
resolution, facilitation skills, and a number of other topics.  This includes designing and 
updating materials and teaching and coordinating the School of Government’s 
comprehensive Effective Supervisory Management Program since 2002. 

 
Administering assessment instruments and providing interpretation and feedback or 
training; instruments include EQ-I (Emotional Intelligence Quotient), Myers Briggs, Styles 
of Management Inventory, Johari Window (Personnel Relations Inventory), Leadership 
Profile System, Ego State Assessment, FIRO B, etc. 

 
Developing and conducting assessment centers and serving as an assessor for the 
purpose of selection, promotion, succession planning, and professional development for 
Police Chiefs, Fire Chiefs, HR Directors, Assistant Town Managers, Planning Directors, 
Finance Directors, etc. 

 
 Conducting recruitment and selection processes focused on assessing management 
 excellence in candidates. 
  

Establishing and revising policies and programs on a variety of personnel topics including 
writing personnel policies, establishing recruitment and selection procedures, developing 
performance review forms and procedures, and problem-solving employee relations 
issues and grievances. 

 
Speaking on a variety of personnel and management topics at the School of Government, 
NCLM Convention, IPMA (international and state conferences), Area Health Education 
Centers, parks and recreation conferences, and for other groups. 

 
Teaching personnel administration course to students in the MPA Program at UNC-G and 
in a six weeks seminar at NCSU, and teaching a seminar on facilitation skills to students 
in the MPA Program at UNC. 

 
 
 

78



CLIENTS ON CONSULTANT PROJECTS: 
 
Municipalities: 
Apex 
Atlantic Beach 
Bald Head Island 
Banner Elk 
Blowing Rock 
Boone 
Brevard 
Butner 
Carrboro 
Carthage 
Charlotte 
Chapel Hill 
Claremont 
Clayton 
Clinton 
Concord 
Creedmoor 
Duck 
Elon 
Forest City 
Franklin 
Fuquay Varina 
Garner 
Gibsonville 
Goldsboro 
Harrisburg 
Henderson 
Hendersonville 
Hertford 
Holden Beach 
Holly Springs 
Hudson 
Laurel Park 
Lowell 
Morrisville 
Mount Pleasant 
Nags Head 
Oak Island 
Ocean Isle Beach 
Pinehurst 
Red Springs 
Reidsville 
Saluda 
Selma 
Shallotte 
Spindale 
Sylva 
Topsail Beach 
Wallace 
Weaverville 
Weldon 

 
 
Wendell 
Williamston 
 
Counties: 
Alleghany 
Anson 
Winterville 
Caldwell 
Cherokee 
Clay 
Dare 
Harnett 
Hyde 
Iredell 
Mitchell 
Nash 
Northampton 
Orange 
Perquimans 
Person 
Rowan 
Rutherford 
Tyrrell 
Vance 
Wake County Sheriff’s Office 
Wilkes 
 
Councils of Government: 
Albemarle Commission 
Centralina Council of Governments 
Isothermal Planning and Development  
Kerr Tar Council of Governments 
Land of Sky 
Triangle J Council of Governments 
Western Piedmont COG 
 
Housing Authorities: 
Benson 
Mount Airy 
North Wilkesboro 
Smithfield 
 
Other Nonprofit/Governmental Agencies: 
Contentnea Metropolitan Sewerage District 
Davidson Water 
School of Government 
North Carolina League of Municipalities 
Raleigh Durham International Airport 
Tuckaseigee Water and Sewer Authority 

 

79



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) and Emergency Response Plan (ERP). 

Action Requested: Approval of Task Order No. 34. 

Attachment: Winterville Task Order No 34 Agreement with Wooten Company. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/7/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/7/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) and Emergency Response Plan (ERP). 

Project Summary: 

In an effort to return to compliance with the Town’s Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) and Emergency 

Response Plan (ERP) reports for the Town’s Drinking Water System, Wooten has provided a new Task 

Order for our services. 

Current Need: 

A Task Order has been provided to Winterville (via email on 11/12/2021) for the extent of this work. 

Budgetary Impact: RRA - $8,000 ERP - $16,850 Total - $24,850 

Recommendation: Approve Task Order No. 34. 

 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Rural Transformation Grant Funds. 

Action Requested: Approval to Move Forward with Grant Application. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/7/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/7/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Rural Transformation Grant Funds. 

The Fund, created by the North Carolina General Assembly in Session Law 2021-180 (S.105), has an 

available pool of $48 million for grantmaking in the four categories described below. 

Rural Transformation Grants can support: 

• Main Street and downtown investment and revitalization efforts; 

• Initiatives that help create resilient neighborhoods; 

• Community enhancements that spur economic growth; 

• Professional development and education programs to build local government capacity 

As North Carolina recovers from the COVID-19 pandemic and applies lessons from the public health 

emergency to improve community resiliency, the Rural Transformation Grant Fund offers a new resource to 

local government leaders as they guide their communities toward a brighter future. 

Staff would like Council’s approval to submit a grant application for funds for the development (Phase I) of 

the Town’s Market property. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval to Submit a Grant Application. 

 

88

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ncleg.gov_enactedlegislation_sessionlaws_html_2021-2D2022_sl2021-2D180.html-23-5FToc83979962&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=A3jg_j74zFRr47eNyFnj2LYDSjk3WvDo8IcAvoPpGkk&m=5o1jy1gJhXPhHUWbnIRwdm4QnKfOVEfQQfogEJEfb84&s=4j1nFdq9NKLLyhNjxfRa1GnacJOdiZza56qnxJ4vVxY&e=


 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Other Items 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Stormwater Workshop Update. 

Action Requested: Set a Date for Said Workshop. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/7/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/7/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Council has stated that holding a public workshop on stormwater was a priority item in recent months. We 
have yet to settle on a date that works for the majority of the Council. 

Therefore, Staff proposes the following choices: 

 

Tuesday, May 10, 2022 – 6:00 pm 

Thursday, May 12, 2022 – 6:00 pm 

Tuesday, May 17, 2022 – 6:00 pm 

Thursday, May 19, 2022 – 6:00 pm 

 

Staff stands ready to assist as needed. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: None. 

 

89



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Other Items 

 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Setting Date and Time for Town Manager Performance Review. 

Action Requested: Set a Date and Time. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/7/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 4/7/2022 ☒ TM: 4/7/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 4/7/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

It is that time again. Last year we help the Town Manager’s Performance Review before the Budget Update 

Meeting. I would suggest if everyone’s schedule permits, we set this meeting for 5:00 pm on Monday, April 

25, 2020 in the Town Hall Executive Conference. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: None. 

 

90


	00_20220411_Agenda
	06_01_Proclamation_Mattie_Smith_Payton
	06_02_Proclamation_Pitt_Community_College
	06_03_Proclamation_Volunteer_Appreciation_Week
	07_01a_PH_Abstract_Carroll_Crossing_Annexv2
	07_01b_Petition_with_Legal_Description_Carroll_Crossing_Annex
	07_01c_Map_Carroll_Crossing_Annex
	07_01d_Cert_of_Sufficiency_Carroll_Crossing_Annex
	07_01e_Adjacent_Notification_Carroll_Crossing_Annex
	07_01f_PH_Notice_Carroll_Crossing_Annex
	07_01g_Draft_Ordinance_#22-O-041_Carroll_Crossing_Annex
	07_02a_PH_Abstract_Forbes_Property_Rezoningv2
	07_02b_Application_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	07_02c_Map_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	07_02d_Legal_Description_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	07_02e_Adjacent_Notification_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	07_02f_PH_Notice_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	07_02g_Staff_Report_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	07_02h_Draft_Ordinance_22-O-042_Forbes_Property_Rezoning
	09_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	09_01b_20220314_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	09_02a_Consent_Abstract_Audit_Contract_CRIv2
	09_02b_Winterville_Audit_Contract_FY_2022
	09_03a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendment_21-22-6v2
	09_03b_Budget_Amendment_2021-2022-6
	10_01a_Old_Abstract_MS4_Stormwater_Management_Planv2
	10_01b_Wooten_Winterville_Agree_Amend_TO_#32
	10_02a_Old_Abstract_Ange_Street_Sidewalk_Extensionv2
	10_02b_Wooten_Winterville_Agreement_TO_#35
	10_02c_Ange_Street_Sidewalk _Cost_Estimate
	10_03a_Old_Abstract_Human_Relations_Board_Appointmentsv2
	10_04a_Old_Abstract_Classification_Pay_Studyv2
	10_04b_20220315_NCLM_Contract_for_Winterville
	Winterville 1
	March 15, 2022
	Heather James

	Winterville 2
	MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
	Scope of Services


	Winterville 3
	Personnel Policy


	11_01a_New_Abstract_RRA_and_ERP_Plansv2
	11_01b_Wooten_Winterville_Agreement_TO_#34
	11_02a_New_Abstract_Rural_Transformation_Grant_Fundsv2
	12_06a_Other_Abstract_Stormwater_Workshop_Updatev2
	12_07a_Other_Abstract_Town_Manager Performence_Reviewv2



